. Australian Government

12 Registered Organisations Commission

29 November 2022

Mr Chris Owen
President
Pharmacy Guild of Australia-Queensland Branch

By e-mail: enquiries@qldquild.org.au

Dear Mr Owen

Pharmacy Guild of Australia-Queensland Branch
Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 - FR2022/130

| acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2022 for the Pharmacy
Guild of Australia-Queensland Branch (the reporting unit). The financial report was lodged
with the Registered Organisations Commission (ROC) on 10 November 2022.

The financial report has now been filed.

The financial report was filed based on a primary review. This involved confirming that the
financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required
under s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the
Australian Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with. A
primary review does not examine all disclosure requirements.

You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.

I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. The ROC
will confirm these matters have been addressed prior to filing next year’s report.

1. Timescale requirements

Documents must be lodged with ROC within 14 days after general meeting

Section 268 of the RO Act requires a copy of the full report and the designated officer's
certificate to be lodged with the ROC within 14 days after the general meeting of members [or
meeting of the committee of management] referred to in section 266.

The designated officer’s certificate indicates that this meeting occurred on 26 October 2022. If
this is correct the documents should have been lodged with the ROC by 9 November 2022.

The full report was not lodged until 20 November 2022.

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
Telephone: 1300 341 665 | Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au
Website: www.roc.gov.au
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Please note that in future financial years if the reporting unit cannot lodge within the 14 day
period prescribed, a written request for an extension of time, signed by a relevant officer,
including any reason for the delay, must be made prior to the expiry of the 14 day period.

2. Rotation of registered auditor

You must rotate your reqgistered auditor

Correspondence was provided to the reporting unit on 22 June 2022, which alerted you that your
registered auditor is approaching their statutory limit on how many consecutive financial years
they are permitted to audit your financial report. The financial report lodged identifies that
Hannah Hiscox was the reporting unit’s registered auditor for this financial year. Our records
indicate that you have now used your current registered auditor for five consecutive financial
years, which is the statutory limit under section 256A.

Please ensure that Hannah Hiscox is not assigned to audit the financial report of the reporting
unit for at least the following two financial years. Further information on the rotation of registered
auditor requirement can be found via this link.

Should you wish to discuss the matters raised in this letter, or if you require further information
on the financial reporting requirements of the Act, | may be contacted on (03) 9603 0707 or by
email at ken.morgan@roc.gov.au

Yours faithfully

/{%w

KEN MORGAN
Financial Reporting Specialist
Registered Organisations Commission


https://www.roc.gov.au/ArticleDocuments/429/fs031-rotation-of-auditors.pdf.aspx
mailto:ken.morgan@roc.gov.au

Pharmacy Guild of Australian Queensland Branch

S.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

Certificate by prescribed designated officer

Certificate for the year ended 30 June 2022

I Christopher Owen being the Branch President of the Pharmacy Guild of Australia
Queensland Branch certify:

¢ that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Pharmacy
Guild of Australia Queensland Branch for the period ended 30 June 2022 referred to
in 5.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and

¢ that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 4 October 2022;
and

e that the full report was presented to an annual general meeting of members of the
reporting unit on 26 October 2022 in accordance with s.266 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

Signature of prescribed designated officer: ....... % % .............................

Name of prescribed designated officer: ....... ChriS OWEN......uiiiiiiiie e
Title of prescribed designated officer: ......... President of Pharmacy Guild QLD Branch............

Dated: ........ 23B/LLI2022.....ceeeeeee e
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Operating report

for the year ended 30 June 2022

The committee presents its operating report on The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022.

(a) Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of
those activities during the year
(i) The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is an employers’ organisation
servicing the needs of proprietors of independent community pharmacies and to represent
their interests in industrial matters.

(i) The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) assists the National Council and
the National Executive of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (“the Guild”) in carrying out
the overall policy and objectives of the Guild.

(iii) Included in the Annual Report are the various reports compiled by The Pharmacy Guild of
Australia (Queensland Branch)’s President, Director and Officers outlining the activities
for the year. There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the
year under review.

(b) Significant changes in financial affairs
There have been no significant changes in The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland
Branch)’s financial affairs during the period to which this report relates.

(©) Right of members to resign
Under Section 174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and Rule 36 of
the Constitution of the Guild, a member may resign from membership by written notice
addressed and delivered to the Branch Director.

(d) Officers and members who are superannuation fund trustee(s) or director of a company that is a
superannuation fund trustee where being a member or officer of a registered organisation is a criterion
for them holding such position:

During the reporting period, none of the member of the Branch Committee was a Director
of Guild Trustee Services Pty Limited, the Trustee of the Guild Retirement Fund, which
includes Guild Super and Guild Pension.

(e) Number of members:
As at 30 June 2022, the number of members of the reporting unit was 848 including
Honorary Life and 50 Year Life Members.

® Number of employees:
As at 30 June 2022, the total number of employees of the reporting entity was 46.

(2) Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year:
The following persons were members of the committee of management of The Pharmacy
Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) during the reporting period, unless otherwise
stated:

Branch Executive

C Owen T Twomey
K Sclavos R Xynias
A Seeto

Page 1



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Branch Committee

P Jaffar A Hawken

J Lester C Owen

K Sclavos A Seeto

M Singh T Twomey

L Walker F Watson

C Whalan R Xynias
(h) Prescribed and other Information:

(i) Insurance of Officers: During the financial year, The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
(Queensland Branch) paid insurance to cover all officers of The Pharmacy Guild of
Australia (Queensland Branch). The officers of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
(Queensland Branch) covered by the insurance policy include all the committee of
management. Other officers covered by the contract are the management of The
Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch). The liabilities insured include costs
and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of The Pharmacy Guild of
Australia (Queensland Branch).

Name and title of designated officer: Chris Owen - Branch President

Dated: 28 September 2022
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Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
King George Central

Level 18

145 Ann Street

Brisbane QLD 4000

GPO Box 1008

Brisbane QLD 4001

T +61 7 3222 0200

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

To the Branch Committee Members of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
(Queensland Branch)

As lead auditor for the audit of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)) for the year ended 30
June 2022, | declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements in relation to the audit; and

b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

ér'?s’e?.;x.?’ Theornd@sv

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
Chartered Accountants

H € Heo cons

H E Hiscox
Partner — Audit & Assurance

Brisbane, 28 September 2022

www.grantthornton.com.au
ACN-130 913 594

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 ACN 127 556 389.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or
refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Limited is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).
GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member
firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127
556 389 ACN 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards
Legislation.
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Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
King George Central

Level 18

145 Ann Street

Brisbane QLD 4000

GPO Box 1008

Brisbane QLD 4001

T +61 7 3222 0200

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) (the
Reporting Unit), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended 30
June 2022, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, the
committee of management statement, the subsection 255(2A) report and the officer declaration statement.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position
of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with:

a the Australian Accounting Standards; and

b any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).

We declare that management’s use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements
of the Reporting Unit is appropriate.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of our report. We are independent of the Reporting Unit in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (‘the Code’) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

www.grantthornton.com.au
ACN-130 913 594

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 ACN 127 556 389.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or
refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Limited is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).
GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member
firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton” may refer to Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127
556 389 ACN 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards
Legislation.



o Grant Thornton

Information other than the financial report and auditor’s report thereon

The Committee of Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the
date of this auditor’s report is in the Operating Report accompanying the financial report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of committee of management for the financial report

The Committee of Management of the Reporting Unit is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for such
internal control as the Committee of Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial report, the Committee of Management is responsible for assessing the Reporting Unit's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Committee of Management either intend to liquidate the Reporting
Unit or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Reporting Unit’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Committee of Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Reporting Unit’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Reporting Unit to cease to continue as a going concern.

© 2022 Grant Thornton Australia Limited. 2



o Grant Thornton

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Reporting Unit to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Reporting Unit audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Committee of Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We declare that Hannah Hiscox is an approved auditor, a member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand and holds a current Public Practice Certificate.
Responsibilities

The Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the recovery of wages
activity financial report in accordance with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the recovery of wages activity financial report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Other Matter

The Committee of Management Statement reflects that The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
has not undertaken any recovery of wages activity during the reporting period ended 30 June 2022. As such, no
opinion is provided in relation to recovery of wages activity.

ér?x’zf nit 7 JLornt@«v

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
Chartered Accountants

H . Hd cons

H E Hiscox

Partner — Audit & Assurance Services
Registration number (as registered by the RO Commissioner under the RO Act): AA2017/142

Brisbane, 28 September 2022

© 2022 Grant Thornton Australia Limited. 3



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Report required under subsection 255(2A)

for the year ended 30 June 2022

The committee of management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection
255(2A) on the reporting unit for the year ended 30 June 2022.

2022 - Consolidated Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act

Donations to Legal costs

political parties 0.61%

0.61% = Remuneration and other

employment-related costs and
expenses - employees

Remuneration and
other employment-
related costs and
enses - employees
43.33% = Operating costs

m Advertising

m Donations to political parties

= Legal costs

\_ Advertising
1.74%

2021 - Consolidated Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act

Donations to political

parties, 0.78% \/—

Legal costs, 0.63% ® Remuneration and other
employment-related costs and
expenses - employees

. m Advertising
Remuneration

and other
employment-
— related costs and = Operating costs
expenses -
employees
40.96%

m Donations to political parties

Operating costs = Legal costs

55.73%
Advertising

1.90%
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

2022 - Parent Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act

Donations to political
parties
0.68%

= Remuneration and other employment-
related costs and expenses -
employees

m Advertising

= Operating costs

m Donations to political parties

= Legal costs

Advertising
1.61%

2021 - Parent Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act

Legal costs
0.53%

Donations to

political parties
0.78% — i ‘

m Remuneration and other
employment-related costs and
expenses - employees

Remuneration

and other
employment- m Advertising
related costs and
expenses -
employees = Operating costs
37.81%
m Donations to political parties
Operating costs
59.04% Advertising = Legal costs
1.85%
Signature of designated OffiCer: .7 ... e
Name and title of designated officer: ....... Chris Owen............ Branch President...........

Dated: ....... 28 SeptembEr 2022......... e



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Committee of Management Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2022

On 28 September 2022 the Branch Committee of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
(Queensland Branch) (the "reporting unit") passed the following resolution in relation to the
general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 30
June 2022:

The Branch Committee declares that in its opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
(b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the reporting
guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act);
(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial
position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable; and
(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:
(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the
organisation; and
(i) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of
the organisation; and
(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with
the RO Act; and
(iv) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a
consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and
(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or
Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the
member or Commissioner; and
(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

he Committee of Management.

Name and title of designated officer: CHRIS OWEN, BRANCH PRESIDENT

Dated this 28th day of September
2022
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Revenue from contracts with customers 3 11,652,869 10,794,683 10,722,746 10,286,705
Other income 3 355,916 1,354,911 754,622 1,715,894
Employee benefit expenses 4b (4,904,884)  (4,100,986) (3,983,273) (3,777,633)
Depreciation and amortisation 4c (263,808) (321,338) (124,958) (139,859)
Other expenses 4a (6,419,150)  (5,910,076) (6,300,391) (6,213,019)
Impairment (expense) / reversal 4d - 363,869 (526,099) -
Finance costs 4e (6,174) (1,540) (1,827) (1,540)
Net gain/(loss) on fair value of investments 4f (396,468) 159,012 (396,468) 159,012
Profit from continuing operations 18,301 2,338,535 144,352 2,029,560
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Total profit before income tax 18,301 2,338,535 144,352 2,029,560
Income tax expense 5 - - - -
Profit after income tax 18,301 2,338,535 144,352 2,029,560
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 18,301 2,338,535 144,352 2,029,560

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2022
Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557
Trade and other receivables 9 2,609,300 661,447 3,114,946 1,264,758
Other current assets 10 1,146,840 638,693 925,953 625,827
Total Current Assets 7,425,532 6,052,733 7,301,511 6,146,142
Non-Current
Trade and other receivables 9 - - 558,588 -
Other financial assets 11 3,619,912 3,982,623 9,524,709 9,975,641
Property, plant and equipment 13 8,483,013 6,220,966 296,453 294,771
Intangible assets 14 162,690 184,572 13,109 21,171
Total Non-Current Assets 12,265,615 10,388,161 10,392,859 10,291,583
Total Assets 19,691,147 16,440,894 17,694,370 16,437,725
Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 16 995,186 840,564 1,351,072 1,394,458
Contract liabilities 17 3,469,878 2,146,208 3,242,403 1,973,675
Financial liabilities 18 85,346 - - -
Short-term employee provisions 19 408,208 429,871 307,051 412,312
Short-term lease liability 15 9,564 9,152 9,564 9,152
Total Current Liabilities 4,968,182 3,425,795 4,910,090 3,789,597
Non-Current
Financial liabilities 18 1,689,439 - - -
Long-term employee provisions 19 104,743 95,059 92,503 91,145
Long-term lease liability 15 26,753 36,311 26,753 36,311
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,820,935 131,370 119,256 127,456
Total Liabilities 6,789,117 3,557,165 5,029,346 3,917,053
Net Assets 12,902,030 12,883,729 12,665,024 12,520,672
Equity
Acquisition reserve 1(s) 77,277 77,277 - -
Retained earnings 12,824,753 12,806,452 12,665,024 12,520,672
Total Equity 12,902,030 12,883,729 12,665,024 12,520,672

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)

and its controlled entities

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Consolidated entity
Balance at 1 July 2020
Profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2021

Balance at 1 July 2021
Profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2022

Parent entity
Balance at 1 July 2020
Profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2021

Balance at 1 July 2021
Profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2022

Retained Acquisition

Earnings Reserve Total

$ $ $
10,467,917 77,277 10,545,194
2,338,535 - 2,338,535
2,338,535 - 2,338,535
12,806,452 77,277 12,883,729
12,806,452 77,277 12,883,729
18,301 - 18,301
18,301 - 18,301
12,824,753 77,277 12,902,030
10,491,112 - 10,491,112
2,029,560 - 2,029,560
2,029,560 - 2,029,560
12,520,672 - 12,520,672
12,520,672 - 12,520,672
144,352 - 144,352
144,352 - 144,352
12,665,024 - 12,665,024

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Receipts from members and customers 10,789,418 11,553,043 9,988,863 10,818,183
Receipts from other reporting units/controlled entities 20b 1,432,271 1,634,806 1,198,974 1,656,510
Payments to suppliers and employees (11,506,659) (9,605,383) (9,867,384) (8,905,964)
Payments to other reporting units/controlled entities 20b (1,177,246) (1,163,451) (1,874,845) (1,396,841)
Interest received 57,006 75,706 56,999 75,659
Finance costs (6,174) (1,540) (1,827) (1,540)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20a (411,384) 2,493,181 (499,220) 2,246,007
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,091 80,434 1,091 80,434
Purchase of units in controlled entity - - - -
Payment for shares in Australasian College of Pharmacy - - (414,813) -
Cash acquired in business combination - - - -
Purchase of investments - (123,302) - (123,302)
Proceeds from sale of investments 92,966 651,517 92,966 651,517
Payment for property, plant and equipment (2,531,513) (190,635) (165,823) (187,965)
Payment for intangible assets - (19,100) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,437,456) 398,914 (486,579) 420,684
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,781,600 - - -
Repayment of borrowings (6,815) - - -
Lease repayments (9,146) (9,901) (9,146) (9,901)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,765,639 (9,901) (9,146) (9,901)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (1,083,201) 2,882,194 (994,945) 2,656,790
Cash at beginning of year 4,752,593 1,870,399 4,255,557 1,598,767
Cash at end of year 8 3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes.
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

This financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland
Branch) and controlled entities (‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’), and the separate financial statements and notes of The
Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) as an individual parent entity (‘Parent Entity’). The Pharmacy Guild of
Australia (Queensland Branch) is an organisation registered under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO
Act), which requires four column financial statements for a Consolidated Group.

1. Statement of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (“AASB”) and the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is a not-for-profit entity incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a financial report
containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply. Material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below and have been consistently applied unless
otherwise stated.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by
the measurement at fair value of selected financial assets.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Group.

This financial report was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Branch Committee on 28
September 2022. The Branch Committee have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.

Accounting policies
a. Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. A list of controlled entities is contained in Note
12 to the financial statements. The consolidated entity controls an entity when the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the consolidated entity.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting.
Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities in the subsidiary. The

consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together
with any gain or loss in profit or loss.
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All inter-group balances and transactions between entities in the Consolidated Group, including any unrealised profits or losses,
have been eliminated on consolidation.

b. Income tax
Parent entity

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is exempt from income tax under Section 50-1 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligations for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except:
- where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office; and
- for receivables and payables.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within
operating cash flows.

Controlled entities

The Australasian College of Pharmacy is a tax concession charity and exempt from income tax.

The Guild Properties Unit Trust is not liable to pay income tax as it distributes 100% of its net annual income to its sole
unitholder, the Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch). If income tax is payable by a controlled entity, the following
policies apply:

The income tax expense for the year comprises current income tax expense and deferred tax expense.

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using applicable
income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date. Current tax liabilities are therefore measured at the

amounts expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the year as
well as unused tax losses.

Current and deferred income tax expense is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss when the tax
relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been fully
expensed but future tax deductions are available. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Their measurement

also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

c. Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight line basis over the asset's
useful life to the Consolidated Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The depreciation rates used for
each class of assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset 2022 2021
Buildings 2.0 - 50.0% 2.0 -50.0%
Plant and Equipment 1.0 -100.0% 1.0-100.0%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised when
control of the asset has passed to the buyer. These gains or losses are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

d. Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the transaction
price, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

Financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
- amortised cost
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
The classification is determined by both:
- The entity's business model for managing the financial asset
- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables, which is presented within other expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets’ meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash
flows

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is omitted where
the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this
category of financial instruments.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Typically,
such financial assets will be either: (i) held for trading, where they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the short-term with
an intention of making a profit, or a derivative; or (ii) designated as such upon initial recognition where permitted. Fair value
movements are recognised in profit or loss. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial assets

The consolidated entity recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon the
consolidated entity's assessment at the end of each reporting period as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, based on reasonable and supportable information that is available, without
undue cost or effort to obtain.

Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected credit
loss allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable to a
default event that is possible within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset has become credit impaired or where it is
determined that credit risk has increased significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit
losses. The amount of expected credit loss recognised is measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of
anticipated cash shortfalls over the life of the instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. In all other cases, the loss allowance
reduces the asset's carrying value with a corresponding expense through profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss allowance as
lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default
at any point during the life of the financial instrument. In calculating the allowance, the Group uses its historical experience,
external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision matrix.

The Group assess impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics.
They have been grouped based on the days past due.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease liabilities and bank loans.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are
included within finance costs or finance income.

e. Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to form a
cash-generating unit.
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f. Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value at the
date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Indefinite life intangible assets are
not amortised and are subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are subsequently
measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss arising from the
derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the intangible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually. Changes in the expected
pattern of consumption or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or period.

Licence

The Registered Training Organisation (“RTO”) licence was acquired in a business combination. Licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The RTO licence is classed as an indefinite life
intangible asset as the Group continues to comply at all times with the legislative and regulatory requirements relevant to their
operations and the licence has no defined term.

Brand

The Australasian College of Pharmacy brand was acquired in a business combination. Brands acquired in a business
combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. The brand is classed as an indefinite life intangible asset as it
is the Group’s intention to continue trading under the brand name for the foreseeable future.

CPD modules

Continuing professional development (“CPD”) modules acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and install the specific
software. Acquired computer software licences have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over each asset’s estimated useful life. Residual values and useful lives are
reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing as described in Note 1e. The following
useful lives are applied:

Class of Intangible 2022 2021
Software 4 years 4 years
CPD Modules 3 years 3 years

Amortisation is included within depreciation and amortisation. Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of computer
software and CPD modules are expensed as incurred.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. When
an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

g. Employee benefits

Provision is made for the consolidated entity's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to
balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present
value of the estimated future cashflows to be made for those benefits. Those cash flows are discounted using market yields on
high quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows.
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h. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits, together
with other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

i. Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Consolidated Group is expected to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Consolidated Group:
identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price
which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the
separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be
delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts,
rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are
determined using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is
subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are recognised as a refund liability.

Membership subscriptions

For membership subscription arrangements that meet the criteria to be contracts with customers, revenue is recognised when
the promised goods or services transfer to the customer as a member of the Group. Management have determined there is
only one distinct membership service promised in the arrangement, and therefore the Group recognises revenue as the
membership service is provided, which is typically based on the passage of time over the subscription period to reflect the
Group's promise to stand ready to provide assistance and support to the member as required.

For member subscriptions paid annually in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient to not adjust the
transaction price for the effects of a significant financing component because the period from when the customer pays and the
good or services will transfer to the customer will be one year or less.

When a member subsequently purchases additional goods or services (for example, event tickets) from the Group at their
standalone selling price, the Group accounts for those sales as a separate contract with a customer.

Event and conference income

The Group hosts various industry events and conferences throughout the year. Revenue from events and conferences is
recognised at the point in time the event is held.

For event registrations received in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient to not adjust the transaction
price for the effects of a significant financing component because the period from when the customer pays and the event is held
will typically be one year or less.

Program funding

The Group receives funding from government and via the National Secretariat to deliver specific programs. Program funding is
recognised in profit or loss when the company satisfies the performance obligations stated within the funding agreements. The
performance obligations and payment terms vary depending upon the program and funder.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the recognition of revenue reflects the transfer of control. Within
funding agreements, there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which
have continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract. Where control is transferred over time, generally the input
methods, being either costs or time incurred, are considered to be the most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of
benefits. Unsatisfied performance obligations are reflected as a contract liability and at the completion of the program, unused
funds are typically repayable to the funder.
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Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

For program funding received in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient to not adjust the transaction
price for the effects of a significant financing component because the period from when the funder pays and the services are
delivered will typically be one year or less.

Training revenue

Two members of the Group are registered training organisations and offer various industry training courses. The courses are
conducted over an approximate 3-12 month period. Revenue is recognised over time as the Group satisfies the performance
obligations associated with course delivery.

For training course revenue received in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient to not adjust the
transaction price for the effects of a significant financing component because the period from when the customer pays and the
training is delivered will typically be one year or less.

CPD courses

The Group conducts an ongoing program of continuing professional development (CPD) courses. Revenue from these courses
is recognised at the point in time the course is held.

For CPD course revenue received in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient to not adjust the
transaction price for the effects of a significant financing component because the period from when the customer pays and the
CPD course is held will typically be one year or less.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is
generally at the time of delivery.

Other income
Interest

Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Distribution revenue

Distribution revenue is recognised when the right to receive a distribution has been established.
Lease income

Lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

COVID-19 stimulus

COVID-19 stimulus income, including JobKeeper, the Cash Flow Boost and Payroll Tax subsidies are recognised when the
right to receive the stimulus has been established.

Volunteer services

During the year, the Group received volunteer services. In those circumstances where the fair value of the volunteer services
can be measured reliably, the Group recognises the fair value of volunteer services received as income together with a
corresponding expense where the economic benefits of the volunteer services are consumed as the services are acquired.
Where the volunteer services will contribute to the development of an asset, the fair value is included in the carrying amount of
that asset.

During the year, the Group did not recognise any volunteer services as revenue because it could not reliably measure the fair
value of those services.

Page 20



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) and its controlled entities

j. Contract assets

Contract assets are recognised when the Group has transferred goods or services to the customer but where the Group is yet
to establish an unconditional right to receipt of consideration. When the Group is able under the contractual terms to invoice
the customer for the goods or services supplied, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.
Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

k. Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer and are recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or when the Group recognises a receivable to reflect its unconditional right to consideration
(whichever is earlier) before the Group has transferred the goods or services to the customer.

I. Finance costs

All finance costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

m. Capitation fees and levies

Capitation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as an expense in the year to which it relates.

n. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of
the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows are presented in the
statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.

o. Right-of-use asset

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs expected to
be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

p. Leases liabilities

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to
occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if
there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee;
lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is
made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written
down.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Principal repayments of lease liabilities are included as financing cash flows and interest paid is included as an operating cash
flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.

q. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are reported in the
relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing liability or
asset in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is
probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote.

r. Comparatives

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the
current financial year.

s. Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired.

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued
or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree is measured at either fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred to profit or loss.

On the acquisition of a business, the consolidated entity assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the consolidated
entity's operating or accounting policies and other pertinent conditions in existence at the acquisition-date.

Business combinations involving nil consideration are recognised at the acquisition-date fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The offsetting amount is recognised within an acquisition reserve within equity.

Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The acquirer retrospectively adjusts the provisional
amounts recognised and also recognises additional assets or liabilities during the measurement period, based on new
information obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition-date.

The measurement period ends on either the earlier of (i) 12 months from the date of the acquisition or (ii) when the acquirer
receives all the information possible to determine fair value.

t. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to
assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions
on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual
results.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below.

Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has had, or may have,
on the Group based on known information. This consideration extends to the nature of the products and services offered,
customers, supply chain, staffing and geographic regions in which the Group operates. Other than as addressed in specific
notes, there does not currently appear to be either any significant impact upon the financial statements or any significant
uncertainties with respect to events or conditions which may impact the Group unfavourably as at the reporting date or
subsequently as a result of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
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Fair value measurement hierarchy

The consolidated entity is required to classify all assets and liabilities, measured at fair value, using a three level hierarchy,
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being: Level 1: Quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; Level 2:
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Considerable judgement is required to determine what is significant
to fair value and therefore which category the asset or liability is placed in can be subjective.

Estimation of useful lives of assets

The consolidated entity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off
or written down.

Indefinite life intangible assets

The consolidated entity tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment, whether
indefinite life intangible assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1(e).

Impairment of non-financial assets other than indefinite life intangible assets

The consolidated entity assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than indefinite life intangible assets at each reporting
date by evaluating conditions specific to the consolidated entity and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal or
value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions.

Independent valuations of land and buildings are obtained periodically for business purposes. When these valuations are
significantly different to the carrying amount of land and buildings, impairment or a reversal of impairment is taken up as
required through profit or loss.

Long service leave

As discussed in note 1(g), the liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting
date are recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all
employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and pay increases
through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.

Business combinations

As discussed in note 1(s), business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The fair value of assets
acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are initially estimated by the consolidated entity taking into consideration
all available information at the reporting date. Fair value adjustments on the finalisation of the business combination accounting
is retrospective, where applicable, to the period the combination occurred and may have an impact on the assets and liabilities,
depreciation and amortisation reported.

u. Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group. Management
anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's accounting policies for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements is provided below.

Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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AASB 17: Insurance Contracts
AASB 2020-5: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Insurance Contracts
Effective date for entity: 1 July 2023

AASB 17 requires all insurance contracts to be accounted for in a consistent manner and requires insurance obligations to be
accounted for using current values. The standard introduces insurance contract measurement principles.

Impact: The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 17. However, based on the entity’s
preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the transactions and balances recognised
in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2024.

AASB 2020-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Effective date for entity: 1 July 2023

AASB 2020-1 amends AASB 101 to clarify requirements for the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position
as current or non-current. For example, the amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the
right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. This
Standard applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2024, there will be no material impact on the
financial statements.

AASB 2021-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of
Accounting Estimates

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2023

AASB 2021-2 amends the following Australian Accounting Standards:

» AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (August 2015);

* AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (July 2015);

» AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (August 2015); and

* AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting (August 2015).

The Standard also makes amendments to AASB Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (December 2017).

These amendments arise from the issuance by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in February 2021 of the
following International Financial Reporting Standards:

* Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2); and
Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8).

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2024, there will be no material impact on the
financial statements.

v. New and revised Standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, new Standards or amendments effective for the years
beginning on or after 1 July 2021 listed below did not have an impact on the financial statements:

AASB 1060: General Purpose Financial Statements — Simplified Disclosures for For-Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities

AASB 2020-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Removal of Special Purpose Financial Statements for
Certain For-Profit Private Sector Entities

AASB 2020-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions: Tier 2 Disclosures

AASB 2020-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Tier 2 Disclosures: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Phase 2) and Other Amendments — December 2020

AASB 2021-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Transition to Simplified Disclosures for Not-for-Profit
Entities — March 2021

AASB 2021-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
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AASB 2022-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Extending Transition Relief under AASB 1.

Impact on adoption of AASB 2022-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

There was no impact on the Group in relation to the initial application of AASB 2018-7.

AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of a Business

The amendment to AASB 3 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs.

There was no impact on the Group in relation to the initial application of AASB 2018-6.
AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — References to the Conceptual Framework

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the accounting standard setter in
developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where there is no applicable standard in place
and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards. This will affect those entities which developed their
accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework includes some new concepts,
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts.

There was no impact on the Group in relation to the initial application of AASB 2019-1.
AASB 2020-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

These amendments provide relief to lessees from applying AASB 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to
assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election
accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account
for the change under AASB 16 Leases, if the change were not a lease modification.

There was no impact on the Group in relation to the initial application of AASB 2020-4.

2. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of members is drawn
to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner:

(1) A Member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed
information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application.

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the information
is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit.

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).
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3. Revenue and other income
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
Membership subscriptions 2,444,918 2,390,556 2,180,075 2,080,027
Commissions received 2,105 1,477 2,105 1,477
Event and conference income 4,703,951 4,397,208 4,703,416 4,392,667
Program funding
- National Secretariat program funding 936,578 1,061,037 936,578 1,061,037
- Queensland government program funding 630,271 732,110 630,271 732,110
- Other program funding 80,586 35,311 80,586 35,311
Sale of goods 25,366 42,027 25,366 29,463
Other sales revenue 891,781 58,724 241,130 177,124
Training course fees 1,937,313 2,076,233 1,923,219 1,777,489
Total revenue from contracts with customers 11,652,869 10,794,683 10,722,746 10,286,705
Other income
COVID-19 Government assistance - 967,197 - 906,477
Distributions received 3a - - 562,618 565,075
Interest revenue 3b 57,006 75,706 56,999 75,659
Other investment income 135,005 155,678 135,005 155,678
Lease income 163,905 156,330 - 13,005
Total other income 355,916 1,354,911 754,622 1,715,894
Total revenue and other income 12,008,785 12,149,594 11,477,368 12,002,599
a. Distributions revenue from:
- controlled entity:
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust - - 562,618 565,075
Total distribution revenue - - 562,618 565,075

b. Interest revenue from:
- external parties 57,006 75,706 56,999 75,659
- controlled entities - - - -

57,006 75,706 56,999 75,659
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4. Profit for the Year

Total comprehensive income has been determined after:

a. Other expenses:

Advertising and promotions expenses
Bank and card charges

Branch committee expenses
Cleaning expenses

Computer costs

Conference and seminar attendance expenses
Consultancy expenses - other
Contract staff

Dispatch expenses

Donations

Events expenses:

- Catering and dinner

- Consultancy expenses

- Display and venue expenses

- Printing

- Speaker costs

- Technical expenses

Insurance expenses

Investment management fees
Legal - other legal costs

Meals expenses

Motor vehicle expenses
Capitation fees

Net loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets
Printing and stationery - other
Power and light

Professional fees, including audit
Provision for doubtful accounts
Purchases - merchandise
Queensland Health Project bin contractor
Rates

Short-term lease expense
Repairs and maintenance
Security expenses

Sponsorship

Staff procurement

Subscriptions

Telephone and internet expenses
Travelling and fares expenses
Sundry expenses

Total other expenses

i) Donations
Total $1,000 or less paid
Total exceeding $1,000 paid
Total donations

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
196,601 197,220 165,352 191,499
36,086 33,711 32,330 33,051
47,445 43,251 47,445 43,251
62,985 60,736 59,503 60,736
401,263 214,598 220,148 179,994
4,079 4,833 4,079 4,833
606,983 401,180 508,268 382,802
280,417 207,681 245,595 184,075
16,709 31,751 16,617 28,434
(i) 69,832 81,582 69,832 81,582
1,050,768 951,001 1,050,768 951,001
- 157,460 - 157,460
929,496 839,868 926,726 893,084
43,056 60,010 38,028 53,277
89,935 78,613 89,255 74,573
312,767 327,851 312,767 327,851
126,472 102,508 116,782 94,210
1,612 2,125 1,612 2,125
68,747 62,770 62,882 52,670
54,585 56,036 48,150 54,765
6,639 26,051 6,639 26,051
23b 867,314 832,011 867,314 832,011
3,358 (1,446) (2) (1,446)
17,985 19,220 17,985 19,220
76,099 71,766 49,873 44914
13,769 7,304 - -
26,498 14,204 26,498 14,204
182,311 169,820 182,311 169,820
45,094 35,638 - -
909 1,831 530,225 530,225
5,881 4,902 5,341 4,902
1,897 42,824 891 42,824
25,446 60,386 25,446 60,386
49,370 6,839 42,506 6,839
77,174 76,608 60,372 61,810
43,205 52,908 41,047 51,058
218,618 211,822 203,212 201,794
357,745 362,603 224,594 297,134
6,419,150 5,910,076 6,300,391 6,213,019
230 317 230 317
69,602 81,265 69,602 81,265
69,832 81,582 69,832 81,582
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4. Profit for the Year (continued)
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Allowance for expected credit losses - trade receivables - - - -
Net loss / (gain) on disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment 3,358 (1,446) (2) (1,446)
Defined contribution plan:
- superannuation expense 390,491 327,460 319,004 300,477
Expenses incurred in connection with holding meetings as
required under the rules of the Branch 65,559 62,552 64,476 60,824
b. Employee benefits expense
Amounts paid to Office Holders
- wages and salaries 166,158 157,703 166,158 157,703
- superannuation 14,213 10,935 14,213 10,935
- leave and other entitlements 8,022 9,905 8,022 9,905
- payroll tax 9,325 8,838 9,325 8,838
197,718 187,381 197,718 187,381
Amounts paid to all other employees
- wages and salaries 3,710,197 3,066,978 2,964,636 2,799,082
- superannuation 376,277 316,525 304,791 289,542
- leave and other entitlements 296,610 301,354 253,391 272,980
- separation and redundancies - - - -
- payroll tax 230,355 177,763 173,767 177,763
- other employee expenses 93,727 50,985 88,970 50,885
4,707,166 3,913,605 3,785,555 3,590,252
Total employee benefits expense 4,904,884 4,100,986 3,983,273 3,777,633
c. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation expense 241,926 302,577 116,896 131,797
Amortisation expense 21,882 18,761 8,062 8,062
263,808 321,338 124,958 139,859
d. Impairment (expense) / reversal
Impairment (expense) / reversal - fixed assets - 363,869 - -
Impairment (expense) / reversal - investments - - (526,099) -
- 363,869 (526,099) -
e. Finance costs
Finance costs:
- interest on leases 1,827 1,540 1,827 1,540
- interest on external bank loans 4,347 - - -
6,174 1,540 1,827 1,540
f. Net gain/(loss) on fair value of investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- FIIG investments (55,334) 53,820 (55,334) 53,820
- Russell investments (341,134) 105,192 (341,134) 105,192
(396,468) 159,012 (396,468) 159,012
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5. Income tax expense
Notes

a. The components of tax expense comprise:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Under / (Over) provision in prior year
Losses not brought to account

b. The prima facie tax on profit before income
tax is reconciled to the income tax expenses as
follows:

Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary
activities before income tax at 25% (2021: 26%)

Add:
Tax effect of:
- non-deductible expenses

Less:
Tax effect of:
- exempt income and expenses
- over / (under) provision in prior year
- losses not brought to account
Income tax expense attributable to entity

The applicable weighted average effective tax
rates are as follows:

6. Key management personnel compensation

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
4,575 608,019 36,088 527,686
4,575 608,019 36,088 527,686

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Remuneration paid to key management personnel includes salary, contributions to members' superannuation and other benefits paid to
them and on their behalf. Expenditure is included in the total employee benefit expenses line item.

The key management personnel compensation includes the following expenses:

Notes
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
7. Auditors’ remuneration

Notes

Remuneration of auditor of the parent entity for:

- auditing of the financial report and grant acquittals
- preparation of the financial report

- taxation services
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Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
548,260 438,717 398,260 379,294
49,366 35,589 34,366 29,944
597,626 474,306 432,626 409,238

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
54,655 48,100 39,655 31,100
9,550 11,150 6,800 6,150
4,000 7,050 1,750 7,050
68,205 66,300 48,205 44,300
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

a. Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown
in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to
items in the Statement of Financial Position as

follows:

Cash at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

b. Restricted cash

Notes

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557
3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557
3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557
3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557

The cash reported for the consolidated entity includes $337,458 (2021: $229,782) in relation to The Australasian College of Pharmacy.
The Australasian College of Pharmacy is a registered charity and is restricted in its ability to transfer cash to other entities within

the group.

9. Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade receivables (relating to contracts with customers)
Less allowance for expected credit losses

Accrued income
Contract assets
Sundry debtors

Amounts receivable from related parties:

- Other reporting units

Pharmacy Guild of Australia

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch
Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd

- Controlled entities

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust
Australasian College of Pharmacy

Non-Current

Amounts receivable from:

- Controlled entities

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust
Australasian College of Pharmacy*

Notes
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Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
1,959,626 547,245 1,857,021 478,705
(23,180) - - -
1,936,446 547,245 1,857,021 478,705
31,793 102,653 2,957 72,853
80,972 10,027 80,972 10,027
35,490 - 30,000 -
507,102 1,522 343,634 1,522
420 - 420 -

1,138 - 1,138 -
15,939 - 13,200 -

- - 713,897 686,088

] - 71,707 15,563
672,854 114,202 1,257,925 786,053
2,609,300 661,447 3,114,946 1,264,758
- - 350,000 -

- - 208,588 -

- - 558,588 -
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued)

a. Allowance for expected credit losses
Current trade receivables are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30 days from end of month terms.

Under AASB 9 a loss allowance is recognised for the expected lifetime credit losses based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors. In the 2022 financial year there has been $23,180 impairment write downs in relation tc
receivables (2021: $7,304).

Credit risk

The group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counter party or group. The main source of credit risk
to the group is considered to be the class of assets described as “trade and other receivables”.

The following table details the group’s trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk (prior to collateral and other credit
enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are considered as ‘past due’ when the
debt has not been settled, within the terms and conditions agreed between the group and the customer or counter party to the
transaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are
provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the group.

The balances of receivables that remain within the initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high
credit quality.

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Trade receivables
Within initial trade terms 1,470,823 277,996 1,446,360 206,429
Past due receivables (but not impaired):
Overdue 1 - 29 days 169,007 264,142 140,439 268,937
Overdue 30 - 59 days 145,616 1,983 113,159 215
Overdue > 60 days 151,000 3,124 157,063 3,124
1,936,446 547,245 1,857,021 478,705
Other receivables
Within initial trade terms 311,723 114,202 722,155 670,203
Past due receivables (but not impaired):
Overdue 1 - 29 days 90,238 - 126,096 6,376
Overdue 30 - 59 days 270,473 - 267,734 5,921
Overdue > 60 days 420 - 141,940 103,553
672,854 114,202 1,257,925 786,053

Neither the group nor parent entity holds financial assets with terms that have been renegotiated, but which would otherwise
be past due or impaired.

The expected credit loss rate for each ageing category is 0% (2021: 0%) and consequently the lifetime expected credit losses
are nil (2021: nil).

b. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables

Total current 2,609,300 661,447 3,114,946 1,264,758
Total non-current - - 558,588 -
Financial assets 2,609,300 661,447 3,673,534 1,264,758
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10. Other assets

Current
Prepayments - expense

11. Other financial assets

Non-Current

Financial assets at amortised cost

Holdings in controlled entities

- The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust
- The Australasian College of Pharmacy

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Mandatorily required by AASB 9:

FIIG investment portfolio

Russell investment portfolio

Notes

Notes

(if)
(iii)

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
1,146,840 638,693 925,953 625,827
1,146,840 638,693 925,953 625,827

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $

- - 5,904,797 5,881,732

- - - 111,286
1,045,666 1,193,966 1,045,666 1,193,966
2,574,246 2,788,657 2,574,246 2,788,657
3,619,912 3,982,623 9,524,709 9,975,641

(i) The Committee has elected to reflect all of the parent entity's investments in subsidiaries at cost, in accordance with the
options available within AASB 127. The original cost of the Australasian College of Pharmacy shareholding is $526,099, which

has been fully impaired in 2021/22.

(i) FIIG investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as it meets the hold to collect and sell criteria.

(iii) The investment in Russell Investment Conservative Fund is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as it fails
the SPPI test. There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity date attached to this investment and distribution income is earned on this

holding.

12. Controlled entities and related parties

Parent Entity:

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland
Branch)

Subsidiaries of Parent Entity:
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust

and its trustee Guildprop Pty Ltd
The Australasian College of Pharmacy
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Country of Principal
Incorp- Place of
oration Business
Australia Australia
Australia Australia
Australia Australia

Percentage Owned (%)

2022 2021
100% 100%
100% 100%
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12. Controlled entities and related parties (continued)

As a registered charity, The Australasian College of Pharmacy (formally Australian College of Pharmacy Limited) is restricted
in its ability to transfer cash or other assets to other entities within the group as the assets and income of the charity may only

be applied to further its objects and no portion shall be distributed directly or indirectly to members of the organisation.

The carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the assets and liabilities of The Australasian College of Pharmacy are:

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Short-term employee provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Long-term employee provisions

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Other Reporting Units:

Country of Principal

Incorp- Place of

oration Business

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia Australia Australia

Pharmacy Guild (Queensland Branch) is a branch of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia.
(listed below) are reporting units and considered related parties.

Other branches of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Australian Capital Territory (ACT) Australia
Branch

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - New South Wales (NSW) Branch Australia
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Northern Territory (NT) Branch Australia
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - South Australia (SA) Branch Australia
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch Australia
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch Australia
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Western Australia (WA) Branch Australia

2022 2021
$ $
337,458 229,782
277,122 156,027
217,143 14,483
831,723 400,292
1,255 2,441
14,581 18,401
847,559 421,134
195,937 89,484
227,475 172,532
101,157 17,559
524,569 279,575
12,239 3,914
536,808 283,489
310,751 137,645

Percentage Owned (%)

The central office and each of the branches

Australia

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

Other Related Parties (being entities associated with The Pharmacy Guild of Australia and its branches):

Fred IT Group Australia
Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd Australia
Guild Group Holdings Ltd Australia
Guild Insurance Ltd Australia
GuildLink Pty Ltd Australia
Guild Superannuation Services Ltd Australia
Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd Australia
Meridian Lawyers Limited Australia
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Non-Current
Land and buildings - at cost 10,378,122 8,043,264 - -
less: Accumulated depreciation and impairment (2,241,500) (2,119,510) - -

8,136,622 5,923,754 - -

Buildings under construction - at cost - - - -

Total land and buildings 8,136,622 5,923,754 - -
Plant and equipment - at cost 1,129,349 980,230 1,053,021 954,438
less: Accumulated depreciation (818,189) (728,081) (791,799) (704,730)
311,160 252,149 261,222 249,708
Equipment - right-of-use - at cost 49,160 49,160 49,160 49,160
less: Accumulated depreciation (13,929) (4,097) (13,929) (4,097)
15 35,231 45,063 35,231 45,063
Total property, plant and equipment 8,483,013 6,220,966 296,453 294,771

During the prior period, the land and buildings at Leichhardt Street, Spring Hill were valued by an independent valuer, Herron
Todd White. The independent valuer assessed the fair value of the land and buildings to be $6,800,000 using the
capitalisation approach for valuation (level 2 on the fair value hierarchy). The capitalisation rate adopted was 7.25%. Whilst
the land and buildings are not measured under the revaluation model, the valuation indicated the reversal of previous
impairment losses of $363,869. The reversal of impairment losses is included within the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income as a separate line item in the comparative period.

The land and buildings are owned by The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust. The land and buildings are leased to related parties
including the parent entity.

Movements in carrying amounts
Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and end of the financial year:

Buildings Equipment

Consolidated entity: Land and Plant and under right-of-use

30 June 2022 Buildings Equipment Construction asset Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,923,754 252,149 - 45,063 6,220,966
Additions 2,338,218 193,293 - - 2,531,511
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals (3,358) (24,180) - - (27,538)
Impairment (expense) / reversal - - - - -
Depreciation expense (121,991) (110,103) - (9,832) (241,926)

Carrying amount at the end of the year 8,136,623 311,159 - 35,231 8,483,013

Buildings Equipment

Land and Plant and under right-of-use
30 June 2021 Buildings Equipment Construction asset Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,700,000 293,371 - 25,203 6,018,574
Additions 30,436 160,199 - 49,160 239,795
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals - (84,396) - (14,299) (98,695)
Impairment (expense) / reversal 363,869 - - - 363,869
Depreciation expense (170,551) (117,025) - (15,001) (302,577)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 5,923,754 252,149 - 45,063 6,220,966
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Parent entity:
30 June 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation expense

Carrying amount at the end of the year

30 June 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation expense

Carrying amount at the end of the year

14. Intangible assets

Non-Current

Acquired software, at cost
less: Accumulated amortisation

CPD modules, at cost
less: Accumulated amortisation

Licences, at cost

Australasian College of Pharmacy Brand, at cost

Total intangible assets

Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets

Consolidated entity

Balance as at 1 July 2020

Additions during the period (externally acquired)

Disposal of intangible assets
Amortisation expense
Closing carrying value at 30 June 2021

Additions during the period (externally acquired)

Disposal of intangible assets
Amortisation expense
Closing carrying value at 30 June 2022

Buildings Equipment
Land and Plant and under right-of-use
Buildings  Equipment Construction asset Total
- 249,708 - 45,063 294,771
- 142,758 - - 142,758
- (24,180) - - (24,180)
- (107,064) - (9,832) (116,896)
- 261,222 - 35,231 296,453
Buildings Equipment
Land and Plant and under right-of-use
Buildings  Equipment Construction asset Total
- 293,371 - 25,203 318,574
- 157,529 - 49,160 206,689
- (84,397) - (14,298) (98,695)
- (116,795) - (15,002) (131,797)
- 249,708 - 45,063 294,771
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
285,137 285,137 181,200 181,200
(257,447) (245,565) (168,091) (160,029)
14a 27,690 39,572 13,109 21,171
30,000 30,000 - -
(20,000) (10,000) - -
10,000 20,000 - -
14b 50,000 50,000 - -
14b 75,000 75,000 - -
162,690 184,572 13,109 21,171
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29,233 30,000 50,000 75,000
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(8,761) (10,000) - -
39,572 20,000 50,000 75,000
(11,882) (10,000) - -
27,690 10,000 50,000 75,000
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14. Intangible assets (continued)
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Parent entity Software CPD Modules Licences ACP Brand
Balance as at 1 July 2020 29,233 - - -
Additions during the period (externally acquired) - - - -
Amortisation expense (8,062) - - -
Closing carrying value at 30 June 2021 21,171 - - -
Additions during the period (externally acquired) - - - -
Disposal of intangible assets - - - -
Amortisation expense (8,062) - - -
Closing carrying value at 30 June 2022 13,109 - - -

a. Remaining useful life of software
Amortisation on acquired software intangible assets is included in the depreciation and amortisation expense recorded in the statement
of comprehensive income. The remaining useful life of the acquired software ranges from 18 months to 46 months.

b. Indefinite life intangible assets

As a result of a business combination on 5 June 2020, the group acquired indefinite life intangible assets being the RTO
licence and the Australasian College of Pharmacy brand name. The group intends to continue to use them indefinitely. The
acquisition occurred in June 2020 and no material change has occurred since the fair value was determined in the purchase
price accounting at that date.

15. Leases

The parent entity leases the premises in which they operate from The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust which forms
part of the consolidated group. The Branch Committee has agreed that a rental payment of $530,225 per annum is paid for the
use of the premises (2021: $530,225 per annum). This is payable annually in the books of the Parent Entity, however
eliminated in the Consolidated Entity due to The Unit Trust being part of the Consolidated Group. The short-term recognition
exemption has been applied as there is no formal lease in place.

The entity has entered into an equipment lease for photocopiers commencing 1 February 2021 with a five-year term with lease
instalments payable monthly.

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and movements:
Balance at the beginning of year 45,063 25,203 45,063 25,203
Additions during the period - 49,160 - 49,160
Depreciation expense (9,832) (15,001) (9,832) (15,001)
Disposal - (14,299) - (14,299)
Closing carrying value at 30 June 13 35,231 45,063 35,231 45,063
Carrying amounts of lease liabilites and the movements:
Balance at the beginning of year 45,463 25,911 45,463 25,911
Additions during the period - 49,160 - 49,160
Accretion of interest 4e 1,827 1,540 1,827 1,540
Payments (10,973) (11,441) (10,973) (11,441)
Disposal - (19,707) - (19,707)
Closing carrying value at 30 June 36,317 45,463 36,317 45,463
Current 9,564 9,152 9,564 9,152
Non-Current 26,753 36,311 26,753 36,311
36,317 45,463 36,317 45,463

The maturity analysis of lease liabiliites is disclosed in Note 20b.
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15. Leases (continued) Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 13 9,832 15,001 9,832 15,001
Interest expense on lease liabilities 4e 1,827 1,540 1,827 1,540
Expense relating to short-term leases 4a 909 1,831 530,225 530,225
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12,568 18,372 541,884 546,766

16. Trade and other payables

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Current
Unsecured liabilities
Trade payables 134,039 256,275 80,917 246,035
Sundry payables 345,677 346,863 246,879 303,495
Accrued expenses 291,697 160,590 215,524 127,594

Other related parties - Gold Cross - - - -
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions - - - -
Legal costs payable
Other legal matters - 7,150 - 7,150
Other legal matters - owing to related parties: Meridian Lawyers - - - -

Amounts owing to:
- Other reporting units

Pharmacy Guild of Australia 112,907 58,345 112,907 58,345
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch 40 259 40 259
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch - 1,554 - 1,554
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch - 690 - 690
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch - 3,061 - 3,061
- Other related parties
Guild Insurance Ltd 99,936 5,777 99,936 5,340
Guildlink Pty Ltd 10,890 - 10,890 -
- Controlled entities
The Australasian College of Pharmacy - - 732 57,687
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust - - 583,247 583,248
995,186 840,564 1,351,072 1,394,458
a. Financial liabilities at amortised cost
classified as trade and other payables
Trade and other payables - all current 995,186 840,564 1,351,072 1,394,458
Financial liabilities as trade and other
payables 995,186 840,564 1,351,072 1,394,458
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17. Contract liabilities
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Current
Income in advance - member subscriptions 1,921,247 999,634 1,769,300 852,800
Income in advance - events 692,542 467,621 692,542 467,621
Income in advance - unexpended program funds 294,055 201,325 294,055 201,325
Income in advance - other 562,034 477,628 486,506 451,929

3,469,878 2,146,208 3,242,403 1,973,675

The significant change in the contract liabilities relating to memberships primarily relates to timing differences as the
membership for FY23 was opened earlier.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period was
$2,126,864 (2021: $2,823,530) for the group and $1,954,331 (2021: $2,975,519) for the parent entity.

Unsatisfied performance obligations
All contracts with customers that the group enters into have an original expected duration of 3-12 months. Therefore the
group expects that 100% of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations to be recognised as revenue

within one year.

18. Financial liabilities

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current $ $ $ $
Secured
Bank loan 85,346 - - -
85,346 - - -
Non-Current
Secured
Bank loan 1,689,439 - - -
1,689,439 - - -
a. Total current and non-current secured liabilities:
Bank loan 1,774,785 - - -
1,774,785 - - -
b. Assets pledged as security:
i) A first ranking charge over all present and after acquired 8,704,769 - - -
property of The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust
ii) First registered mortgage over non-residential property in 558,891 - - -
Darwin
iii) First registered mortgage over residential property in 1,779,327 - - -
Canberra.

The first registered mortgages in ii) and iii) form part of the first ranking charge at i).
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19. Employee Provisions

Office Holders

Annual leave

Long service leave
Separations and redundancies
Other

Subtotal office holders

Employees other than office holders
Annual leave

Long service leave

Separations and redundancies

Other

Subtotal employees other than office holders
Total employee provisions

Current

Non-current
Total employee provisions

Provision for employee benefits

A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to annual and long service leave. In calculating the
present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on

historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in Note 1 to this

report.

20. Cash flow information

a. Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities

with profit after income tax

Profit after income tax

Non-cash flows in profit:

- Depreciation and amortisation expense
- Impairment expense / (reversal)

- (Gain) / loss on financial assets at fair value through

the profit or loss

- (Profit) / loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment and intangibles

- Impairment of related party loans

- Employee termination benefits (fixed assets)
- Reinvested income - Russell Investments

Change in assets and liabilities

- (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
- (Increase)/decrease in other assets

- Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

- Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

- Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Cash flows from operations

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $

14,390 3,950 14,390 3,950

876 111 876 111

15,266 4,061 15,266 4,061

246,282 242,219 164,993 224,660

251,403 278,650 219,295 274,736

497,685 520,869 384,288 499,396

512,951 524,930 399,554 503,457

408,208 429,871 307,051 412,312

104,743 95,059 92,503 91,145

512,951 524,930 399,554 503,457

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $

18,301 2,338,535 144,352 2,029,560

4c 263,808 321,338 124,958 139,859
4d - (363,869) 526,099 -
4f 396,468 (159,012) 396,468 (159,012)
4a 3,358 (1,446) (2) (1,446)
23,091 - 23,091 -
(126,723) (147,255) (126,723) (147,255)

(1,947,853) 1,081,586 (2,408,776) 998,848
(508,147) (9,830) (300,126) (11,158)

154,622 316,432 (43,386) 313,203
1,323,670 (829,311) 1,268,728 (849,855)
(11,979) (53,987) (103,903) (66,737)

(411,384) 2,493,181 (499,220) 2,246,007
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20. Cash flow information (continued)

b. Related party operating cash flows

i) Cash inflows

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch
Fred IT Group

Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd
Guild Group Holdings Ltd

Guild Insurance Ltd

GuildLink Pty Ltd

Guild Superannuation Services Ltd

Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd

Pharmacy Guild Sales & Valuations (NSW) Pty Ltd

Meridian Lawyers Limited
Australasian College of Pharmacy
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust

ii) Cash outflows

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch
Fred IT Group

Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd
Guild Group Holdings Ltd

GuildLink Pty Ltd

Guild Insurance Ltd

Meridian Lawyers Limited

Australasian College of Pharmacy

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust

c. Non-cash investing activities
Units issued by Unit Trust

Net book value of motor vehicle disposed as termination benefit

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
1,175,470 1,115,847 775,118 1,115,847
777 - 777 -

4,939 20,071 4,413 16,488

408 - 408 -
10,627 14,659 10,627 14,659

50 2,853 50 45

50 11,000 50 11,000

- 76,636 - 76,636

47,520 231,810 34,650 47,890
45,000 412 45,000 412
76,460 108,277 76,460 108,277
30,340 26,655 30,340 26,655

- 19,800 - 19,800

32,000 - 32,000 -
8,630 6,786 8,630 6,786

- - 82,773 212,015

- - 97,678 -

1,432,271 1,634,806 1,198,974 1,656,510
(1,004,820) (980,405) (1,004,551) (979,965)
(5,879) (4,137) (5,879) (4,137)
(6,108) (5,444) (6,108) (5,444)
(4,875) (620) (4,875) (620)
(4,024) (2,539) (4,024) (2,539)
(3,716) (1,850) (3,716) (1,850)
(2,331) (1,660) (2,331) (1,660)
(17,061) (10,005) (17,061) (10,005)
(12,089) (19,284) (9,900) (19,284)
(76,466) (70,830) (76,156) (70,830)
(39,877) (66,677) (39,877) (66,677)

- - (350,367) (130,667)

- - (350,000) (103,163)
(1,177,246)  (1,163,451) (1,874,845)  (1,396,841)

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $

(i) - - 23,065 30,436
(23,091) - (23,091) -

(i) During the current and prior period, the parent entity made payments for building additions for the Trust. In settlement of these

cash transactions, treated as payments for property, plant and equipment in the Statement of Cash Flows, units in the Trust

were issued for no cash consideration.
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21. Financial risk management

The group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, portfolios of fixed interest and managed fund
investments, trade and other receivables and payables, including amounts owing to and receivable from subsidiaries, bank
loans and lease liabilities.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as described in the accounting
policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $

Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,669,392 4,752,593 3,260,612 4,255,557
Trade and other receivables 9 2,609,300 661,447 3,673,534 1,264,758
Units in controlled unit trust 11 - - 5,904,797 5,881,732
Shares in The Australasian College of Pharmacy 1" - - - 111,286

6,278,692 5,414,040 12,838,943 11,513,333

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FIIG investment portfolio 1" 1,045,666 1,193,966 1,045,666 1,193,966
Russell investment portfolio 11 2,574,246 2,788,657 2,574,246 2,788,657

3,619,912 3,982,623 3,619,912 3,982,623

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Trade and other payables 16 995,186 840,564 1,351,072 1,394,458
Bank loans 18 1,774,785 - - -
Lease liabilities 15 36,317 45,463 36,317 45,463

2,806,288 886,027 1,387,389 1,439,921

Net income and expense from financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest revenue 7,475 7,607 7,468 7,560
Interest expense 6,174 1,540 1,827 1,540
Distributions from Unit Trust 3a - - 562,618 565,075

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Mandatorily required by AASB 9

Change in fair value [(gain)/loss] 4f 396,468 (159,012) 396,468 (159,012)

Other investment income 3 135,005 155,678 697,623 720,753

Interest revenue 49,531 68,099 49,531 68,099
594,653 73,912 1,715,535 1,204,015

Financial risk management policies
The finance committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the group in meeting its financial targets, whilst minimising
potential adverse effects on financial performance. Risk management policies are approved and reviewed by the committee of

management on a regular basis. These include the credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for group operations. The group does not have any
derivative instruments at 30 June 2022 (2021: nil).
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

The finance committee, consisting of senior executives of the group, meets on a regular basis to analyse financial risk
exposure and to evaluate treasury management strategies in the context of the most recent economic conditions and
forecasts. The finance committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its
financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance.

The reporting entity's investment strategy directs funds to be invested in interest bearing securities in the fixed income asset class to
meet the following objectives:

(i) Preservation of capital

(ii) Maximise returns subject to the investment guidelines, showing a bias towards income distributions in preference to capital
appreciation

(iii) Ensure sufficient liquidity at all times, to meet cash flow requirements.

Specific financial risk exposures and management

The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rates, liquidity risk and credit risk.

a. Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a future change in
interest rates will affect future cash flows.

As at 30 June 2022, the group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through cash at bank held at variable interest
rates, bank loans at variable interest rates and floating rate notes and other interest securities with rates linked to variable
benchmarks such as the bank bill swap rate. For further details on interest rate risk refer to Note 20g.

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations
relating to financial liabilities. The group manages this risk by monitoring forecast cash flows, maintaining a reputable credit profile,
managing credit risk related to financial assets, and only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions and licenced investment

custodians.

The tables below reflect the undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. The timing of cash flows presented in the
table to settle financial liabilities reflect the earliest contractual settlement dates.

Consolidated entity

Weighted Within1 Year 1-5Years Over5years Total

2022 Average

Interest

Rate

Financial liabilities due for payment
- Trade and other payables 0.0% 995,186 - - 995,186
- Bank loans 3.0% 133,938 1,775,115 - 1,909,053
- Lease liabilities 4.4% 10,974 39,322 - 50,296
Total expected outflows 1,140,098 1,814,437 - 2,954,535

Weighted Within1 Year 1-5Years Over5years Total

2021 Average
Interest
Rate
Financial liabilities due for payment
- Trade and other payables 0.0% 840,564 - - 840,564
- Lease liabilities 4.4% 10,974 39,322 - 50,296
Total expected outflows 851,538 39,322 - 890,860
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

Parent entity

2022 Within 1 Year 1-5Years Over 5 years Total

Financial liabilities due for payment

- Trade and other payables 0.0% 1,351,072 - - 1,351,072
- Lease liabilities 4.4% 10,974 39,322 - 50,296
Total expected outflows 1,362,046 39,322 - 1,401,368

2021 Within 1 Year 1-5Years Over5years Total

Financial liabilities due for payment

- Trade and other payables 0.0% 1,394,458 - - 1,394,458
- Lease liabilities 4.4% 10,974 39,322 - 50,296
Total expected outflows 1,405,432 39,322 - 1,444,754

Unused borrowing facilities at the reporting date:

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ $ $ $
Related party loan 300,000 - - -

Australasian College of Pharmacy entered into a loan agreement with Pharmacy Guild of Australia on 8 June 2022 for a
loan of an amount up to $300,000 for working capital. The lender requires 10 days notice for drawdown. Amounts
loaned are repayable not less than 12 months after receipt of a full or partial repayment notice by the lender.

c. Foreign exchange risk
The group is not exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency.
d. Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contract obligations
that could lead to a financial loss to the group.

Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures ensuring, to the extent possible, that customers and counterparties to
transactions are of sound credit worthiness. It includes the utilisation of systems for the approval, granting and renewal of credit limits,
the regular monitoring of exposures against such limits and the monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and
counterparties. Such monitoring is used in assessing expected credit losses. Credit terms are generally 30 days from the date of
invoice.

Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a high credit rating or in entities that the
Branch Committee has otherwise cleared as being financially sound.

Credit risk exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at reporting date, excluding the value of any collateral or
other security held, is the equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those financial assets (net of any allowances) as
presented in the statement of financial position. There are no material amounts of collateral held as security at 30 June 2022 (2021: nil).

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due or impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. Aggregates of such
amounts are as detailed at Note 9.

The group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under financial instruments
entered into by the consolidated group. The trade receivable balances at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 do not include any
counterparties with external credit ratings. Customers are assessed for credit worthiness using the criteria detailed above.

Credit risk is managed for cash and cash equivalents and other investments, including the FIIG and Russell Investment
portfolios by selecting reputable Australian financial instittutions and licenced investment custodians. The investment
managers are directed to invest in low credit risk portfolios, with FIIG being high quality fixed income products and the Russell
Investment holding being in their Conservative Fund which invests in predominantly defensive assets.
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

e. Price risk

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices.
The group is not exposed to any material commodity price risk.

f. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group. The fair value of an asset or liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

Management and the Branch Committee of the Group assessed that cash, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and lease liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

For other financial assets, the group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

The following table contains the carrying amounts and related fair values for the Group's financial assets and liabilities.

Consolidated Entity Notes

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8
Trade and other receivables 9
FIIG investment portfolio 11
Russell investment portfolio 1

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 16
Bank loans 18
Lease liabilities 15

Total financial liabilities
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Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount
2022 2022 2021 2021
$ $ $ $
3,669,392 3,669,392 4,752,593 4,752,593
2,609,300 2,609,300 661,447 661,447
1,045,666 1,045,666 1,193,966 1,193,966
2,574,246 2,574,246 2,788,657 2,788,657
9,898,604 9,898,604 9,396,663 9,396,663
995,186 995,186 840,564 840,564
1,774,785 - - -
36,317 36,317 45,463 45,463
2,806,288 1,031,503 886,027 886,027
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

Parent Entity

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8
Trade and other receivables 9
FIIG investment portfolio 11
Russell investment portfolio 1

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 16
Lease liabilities 15
Total financial liabilities

Fair value hierarchy - 30 June 2022
Consolidated Entity
Assets measured at fair value

FIIG investment portfolio
Russell investment portfolio

Parent Entity

Assets measured at fair value
FIIG investment portfolio
Russell investment portfolio

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount
2022 2022 2021 2021
$ $ $ $
3,260,612 3,260,612 4,255,557 4,255,557
3,114,946 3,114,946 1,264,758 1,264,758
1,045,666 1,045,666 1,193,966 1,193,966
2,574,246 2,574,246 2,788,657 2,788,657
9,995,470 9,995,470 9,502,938 9,502,938
1,351,072 1,351,072 1,394,458 1,394,458
36,317 36,317 45,463 45,463
1,387,389 1,387,389 1,439,921 1,439,921
Date of Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Valuation
30/06/2022 1,045,666 - -
30/06/2022 2,574,246 - -
3,619,912 - -
Date of Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Valuation
30/06/2022 1,045,666 - -
30/06/2022 2,574,246 - -
3,619,912 - -

The fair value of the FIIG and Russell investments portfolios are based on quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets

for identical assets, in accordance with Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Fair value hierarchy - 30 June 2021

Consolidated Entity

Assets measured at fair value
FIIG investment portfolio
Russell investment portfolio

Parent Entity

Assets measured at fair value
FIIG investment portfolio
Russell investment portfolio
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Date of
Valuation

30/06/2021
30/06/2021

Date of
Valuation

30/06/2021
30/06/2021

Level 1

1,193,966
2,788,657

Level 2

Level 3

3,982,623

Level 1

1,193,966
2,788,657

Level 2

Level 3

3,982,623




The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
and its controlled entities

21. Financial risk management (continued)
g. Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the group’s exposure to changes in interest rates. The table indicates the

impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk
variable that management considers to be reasonably possible based on observations of current market conditions. The
calculations are based on the group's interest-bearing financial instruments at each balance date. All other variables are held

constant.
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity
Profit Equity Profit Equity
$ $ $ $

Year-ended 30 June 2022
+2.5% in interest rates +60,811 + 60,811 + 93,943 + 93,943
- 2.5% in interest rates + 39,402 + 39,402 - 4,509 - 4,509
Year-ended 30 June 2021
+/-0.5% in interest rates +/- 47,012 +/- 47,012 +/- 46,426 +/- 46,426

The above interest rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on the assumption that all other variables remain
unchanged.

22. Events after reporting date

The Branch Committee is currently in negotiations with the utlimate parent entity, Pharmacy Guild of Australia, in respect of
wholly owned subsidiary, Australasian College of Pharmacy Pty Ltd. It is expected that Pharmacy Guild of Australia will take
a majority interest in the subsidiary during 2022/23. The net value of the investment is shown in Note 11.

As of the date of the signing of this report the Committee of Management were not aware of any other events which materially
affect the information presented in this financial report.

23. Related party transactions

The entity's related parties are its controlled entities (see note 12) and Branch Committee Members. The sales to and
purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances for sales and purchases at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs
in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the
year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
related parties and declared person or body (2021: $Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

No expected credit losses have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised
in respect of expected credit losses due from a loan to a related party.

Related party receivables are disclosed in Note 9 and payables are disclosed in Note 16.

The following persons were members of the Branch Committee and Branch Executive during the financial year:

Branch Executive

C Owen (full year) T Twomey (full year)
K Sclavos (full year) R Xynias (full year)
A Seeto (full year)

Branch Committee

P Jaffar (full year) J Lester (full year)

K Sclavos (full year) C Owen (full year)
M Singh (full year) A Seeto (full year)

L Walker (full year) T Twomey (full year)
C Whalan (full year) F Watson (full year)
A Hawken (full year) R Xynias (full year)
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23. Related party transactions (continued)

a. Subsidiaries of Parent Entity

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust
Revenue received from distributions

Recovery of expenses paid on behalf of Trust
Expenses paid for rent

Capital contributions paid

Return of units to settle amounts payable to Trust
The Australasian College of Pharmacy (ACP)
Revenue received for other sales

Expenses paid for purchases and services

b. Other reporting units

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia

- Revenue received for Pharmacy Transformation program
- Revenue received for events

- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs

- Expenses paid for capitation fees
- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch

- Revenue received for events

- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs
- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch

- Revenue received for commission income

- Revenue received for events

- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs
- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch

- Revenue received for events

- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch

- Revenue received for events

- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch

- Revenue received for events
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs

- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Notes

4a

4a
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$

925,578

6,934
517,657

867,314

5,102

2,105
32,032
479

5,825

370

1,649

9,748

3,548

45
382

1,966

Consolidated Entity
2022

2021
$

942,578

15,225
45,038

832,011
52,216

12,000

3,950

3,761

1,477
14,420
3,661

4,950

3,645

414

2,543

45
2,553

3,094

Parent Entity

2022 2021

$ $
562,618 565,075
102,450 108,317
530,225 530,225
23,065 -
126,288 161,901
93,457 156,183
925,578 942,578
6,934 15,225
83,200 45,038
867,314 832,011
- 52,216

- 12,000

- 3,950

5,102 3,761
2,105 1,477
32,032 14,420
- 403

5,825 4,950
370 -
1,649 3,645
9,748 414
3,548 2,543
45 45

382 -
1,966 3,094



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
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23. Related party transactions (continued)

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch
- Revenue received for events

- Expenses paid for purchases and services
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch

- Expenses paid for purchases and services
c. Other related parties

Fred IT Group

- Revenue received for events

Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd

- Revenue received for events
- Revenue received for rent

- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs

- Expenses paid for purchases and services
Guild Group Holdings Ltd

- Revenue received for events

- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs

Guild Insurance Ltd

- Revenue received for events

- Expenses paid for purchases and services
GuildLink Pty Ltd

- Revenue received for events
Guild Superannuation Services Ltd
- Revenue received for events
Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd

- Revenue received for events
Meridian Lawyers Limited

- Revenue received for events

- Expenses paid for purchases and services

Notes Consolidated Entity
2022 2021
$ $
45 10,000
2,119 1,660
16,159 10,695
77,105 76,636
43,500 26,000
149,058 143,325
14,190 23,875
- 17,531
40,909 -
- 375
18,600 101,518
157,996 58,630
27,582 26,655
- 45
50,909 32,245
7,845 6,786
36,251 10,061
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Parent Entity

2022
$

45

2,119

16,159

77,105

43,500

40,909

18,600

157,714

27,582

50,909

7,845

36,251

2021
$

10,000

1,660

10,695

76,636

26,000

17,531

375

101,518

58,630

26,655

45

32,245

6,786

10,061



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)
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23. Related party transactions (continued)

d. Companies associated with members of the Branch

Committee

Event consulting, speaker fees and management fees paid to
a company controlled by Mr K Sclavos

Rent revenue received from a company controlled by

Mr K Sclavos

24, Lessor commitments

Lessor Disclosures

Lease commitments receivable:

Within 1 year
Between 1 - 2 years
Between 2 - 3 years

Notes

Notes

Consolidated Entity

2022 2021

$ $
163,112 168,590
13,005 13,005

Consolidated Entity

Parent Entity

2022 2021

$ $
163,112 168,590
13,005 13,005

Parent Entity

2022 2021 2022 2021

$ $ $ $
75,990 149,058 - -
- 75,990 - -
75,990 225,048 - -

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust leases space within their buildings to related party tenants. The lease was renewed 1
January 2019 for a term of 4 years ending 31 December 2022, with an option to extend of 5 years. Rental charges are based on fixed

increments within the lease agreement.

The Trust manages the risk associated with the rights it retains in the underlying land and building assets by ensuring the
property is maintained to a good standard and is adequately insured.

25. Entity details

The registered office and principal place of business of the entity is:

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch)

132 Leichhardt Street

SPRING HILL QLD 4004

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is an employers' organisation servicing the needs of proprietors of
independent community pharmacies and to represent their interests in industrial matters. The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
(Queensland Branch) assists the National Council and the National Executive of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (the Guild)

in carrying out the overall policy objectives of the Guild.
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Officer Declaration Statement

I, Chris Owen, being the Branch President of the Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch),
declare that the following activities did not occur during the reporting period ending 30 June 2022.

The reporting unit did not:

- agree to receive financial support from another reporting unit to continue as a going concern (refers
to agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount)

- agree to provide financial support to another reporting unit to ensure they continue as a going
concern (refers to agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount)

- acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a
restructure of the branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager,
Fair Work Commission

- receive capitation fees from another reporting unit

- receive revenue via compulsory levies

- receive donations

- receive revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity

- incur fees as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions

- pay affiliation fees to other entity

- pay compulsory levies

- pay a grant that was $1,000 or less

- pay a grant that exceeded $1,000

- pay to a person fees or allowances to attend conferences or meetings as a representative of the
reporting unit

- pay legal costs relating to litigation

- pay a penalty imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009

- have a payable to an employer for that employer making payroll deductions of membership
subscriptions

- have a payable in respect of legal costs relating to litigation

- have a fund or account for compulsory levies, voluntary contributions or required by the rules of the
organisation or branch

- transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), account, asset or controlled

entity

- have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit

- make a payment to a former relate

Dated this 28th day of September 2022
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